Page 1of4

Ly/??m

Village of Lytton
Council Meeting
Agenda - Wednesday November 24, 2021 at 7:00 pm
Conducted via Zoom

1 Call to Order

2 Adoption of Agenda
2.1 Agenda for the November 24, 2021 Regular Council Meeting

2.2 Introduction of Late Items
6.1 Business Arising from the Minutes

THAT Council adopt the agenda for the November 24, 2021 Regular
Council meeting as presented/amended.

3 Delegations
4 Public Comment
Public are invited to comment on matters pertaining to the agenda, for up to two (2)

minutes.

5 Adoption of Minutes
5.1 Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting

THAT the minutes of the Regular Council Meeting held on Wednesday p.#5
November 10, 2021, be adopted as presented/amended.

6 Business Arising from the Minutes/Unfinished Business
6.1 Business Arising from the Minutes

6.2 Unfinished Business
7 Staff Reports
7.1 Chief Administrative Officer
a) Recovery Staffing Update (Jim McDonald information)
b) A/Chief Administrative Officer
THAT as per the Community Charter Section 147, and Section 148, Council

appoints Ms. Leslie Groulx as the Acting Chief Administrative Officer and
Acting Corporate Officer for the Village of Lytton.

Village of Lytton Regular Council Meeting



Page 2 of 4

THAT Mis. Leslie Groulx be appointed as Signing Authority for the Village of
Lytton’s accounts at the Scotia Bank effective November 24, 2021.

THAT Mr. Ron Mattiussi be removed as Signing Authority for the Village of
Lytton’s accounts at the Scotia Bank effective November 24, 2021

THAT Mis. Leslie Groulx, Acting CAO, be authorized to sign approved
contracts on behalf of the Village of Lytton.

7.2 Chief Financial Officer
a) 2020 Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) p.#11

THAT Council adopt the 2020 Statement of Financial Information as
presented.

b) 2021 Property Tax Report p.#16

THAT the Village of Lytton receive the 2021 Property Tax Report, and
direct staff to communicate to property owners that the Property Tax
Notices will be reissued by the end of November 2021, and that payment is
due upon receipt. Further, all cheques received from property owners that
are on hand will be deposited by November 30, 2021. Lastly, interest will
continue to accrue on any unpaid 2020 balances until they are fully paid.

7.3 Corporate Officer
7.4 Economic Development Officer
7.5 Public Works p.#18

a) Water Recovery Update Report
7.6 Fire/Rescue
8 Bylaws, Policies and Resolutions

9 Correspondence
9.1 Incoming Correspondence for Action p.#24

a) November 16, 2021, Gold Country Communities Society request
for Letter of Support by November 25, 2021, for their application
for $50,000 from a Shop Local BC Grant funded by the
Government of Canada for a series of Shop Local campaign videos
highlighting businesses in each of the Gold Country Communities,
and the creation of a Gold Country Community Collective website
with merchandising functionality.

THAT the Village of Lytton provide a Letter of Support for the Gold Country
Communities Society for their application for 50,000 from a Shop Local BC
Grant funded by the Government of Canada for a series of Shop Local
campaign videos highlighting businesses in each of the Gold Country

Village of Lytton Regular Council Meeting



Page 3 0of4

Communities, and the creation of a Gold Country Community Collective
website with merchandising functionality.

9.2 Correspondence List
a) Incoming for Information

b) Outgoing Relevant to Council

10 Reports from Mayor and Councillors
10.1 Mayor Polderman
10.2 Councillor Leitch
10.3 Councillor Hay
10.4 Councillor Graie

11 Reports from Committees of Council and Commissions
11.1 Citizen’s Advisory Committee
a) November 22, 2021 Meeting Report

11.2 Leadership and Policy for Recovery Select Committee
a) November 24, 2021 Meeting Report

12 New Business
12.1 2020 Annual Report p.#25

THAT Council adopt the 2020 Annual Report as presented.
12.2 Citizen’s Advisory Committee Alternate Chairperson

THAT Council appoints as the Alternate Chairperson in the
event of the absence of Councillor Leitch.

12.3 Proposed Unmet Needs Committee DRAFT Terms of Reference p. #37
Alison Poste, Recovery Manager

THAT Council establish an Unmet Needs Committee as per the proposed
Terms of Reference to

13  Calendar of Events/Outstanding Items List
a) December 2021 Citizen’s Advisory Committee Meeting
b) December 8, 2021 Leadership and Policy for Recovery Select Committee
Meeting
c) December 8, 2021 Regular Council Meeting

14 Closed Meeting
a) Items to be Released from Closed Session

21-57C
Moved by Mayor Polderman seconded by Councillor Leitch, THAT the following items

be removed from closed session:

Village of Lytton Regular Council Meeting



Page 4 of 4

21-53C
Moved by Councillor Leitch, seconded by Mayor Polderman, THAT the Village of
Lytton enter into a Tripartite Transfer Agreement with the Lytton First Nation and
the Province of BC for the St. Bartholomew’s Hospital Lands as per the Tripartate
Transfer Agreement as presented.

CARRIED

21-54C
Moved by Councillor Graie, seconded by Councillor Leitch, THAT the Village of
Lytton seek funding from Emergency Management BC for a critical incident
debrief for both Council and the Citizen’s Advisory Committee with details to be
determined once funding is secured.

CARRIED

21-55C
Moved by Councillor Graie, seconded by Mayor Polderman, THAT the Village of
Lytton request staff research funding or volunteer options to enable the Village to
host public meetings regarding the new Building Bylaw and provide expert
resources to answer resident questions.

CARRIED

21-56C
Moved by Mayor Polderman, seconded by Councillor Leitch, THAT Council
request that staff put together a plan for the development of, and public input
into the new building, zoning, and servicing bylaws.
CARRIED
CARRIED

b) Closed Session

THAT Council close the meeting to the public to discuss one matter related to
Community Charter Section 90(1)(a) and (c) personnel.

15 Adjournment
15.1 Adjournment of the November 24, 2021 Regular Council Meeting

THAT the November 24, 2021 Regular Council Meeting be adjourned.

Village of Lytton Regular Council Meeting



Page 1 of 6

Ly/??m

Village of Lytton
Council Meeting
DRAFT Minutes - Wednesday November 10, 2021 at 7:00 pm
Conducted via Zoom

Council Present: Mayor Polderman, Councillor Graie, Councillor Hay, Councillor Leitch
Staff Present: FO Hawes, CAO Advisor Wiedeman
Regrets:

1 Call to Order
Mayor Polderman called the November 10, 2021 Regular Council meeting to order at 7:00 pm.

2 Adoption of Agenda
2.1 Agenda for the November 10, 2021 Regular Council Meeting

Correction to Agenda Item 14:

THAT Council close the meeting to the public to discuss three matters
related to Community Charter Section 90(1)(g) legal, one matter related to
Community Charter Section 90(1)(a) personnel, and one matter related to
Community Charter Section 90(1)(e) land.

2.2 Introduction of Late Items

6.1 Business Arising from the Minutes
d) Removal of Signing Authority for Rod Bate

21-211 Moved by Councillor Leitch, seconded by Councillor Hay, THAT Council
adopt the agenda for the November 10, 2021 Regular Council meeting as
amended. CARRIED
3 Delegations
4 Public Comment
Public are invited to comment on matters pertaining to the agenda, for up to two (2)

minutes.

5 Adoption of Minutes
5.1 Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting

Amendment made to correct a name under Agenda Topic 10.2.

Village of Lytton Regular Council Meeting



21-212

Moved by Councillor Hay, seconded by Councillor Leitch, THAT the minutes
of the Regular Council Meeting held on Wednesday October 27, 2021, be
adopted as amended.

6 Business Arising from the Minutes/Unfinished Business

21-213

21-214

21-215

21-216

6.1 Business Arising from the Minutes
a) Advisory Planning Committee

Moved by Councillor Leitch, seconded by Councillor Hay, THAT Council
create an Citizen’s Advisory Committee made up of a one Council member,
and a maximum of 10 residents of Lytton who put their names forward for
consideration, to provide advice and recommendations to Council on
DRAFT plans, donations and other items as assigned, as per the Terms of
Reference.

b) DRAFT Terms of Reference

Moved by Councillor Leitch, seconded by Councillor Hay, THAT Council
accept the DRAFT Terms of Reference for the Citizen’s Advisory Committee
as presented, and that the Chair of the Committee will be Councillor Leitch,
and the first meeting will be November 22, 2021 at 4:00 pm.

c) Recovery Funding

21-117
THAT Council approve $500,000 be made available for emergency
response and recovery efforts.

CARRIED

Moved by Councillor Leitch, seconded by Councillor Hay, THAT Council
rescind resolution 21-117 which stated THAT Council approve $500,000 be
made available for emergency response and recovery efforts.

d) Removal of Signing Authority for Rod Bate
Moved by Councillor Graie, seconded by Councillor Leitch, THAT Rod Bate

be removed as a Signing Authority for the Village of Lytton’s accounts at
the Scotia Bank effective November 10, 2021.

7 Staff Reports

7.1 Chief Administrative Officer

In the absence of the A/CAO Ron Mattiussi, Alison Poste, Recovery
Manager, provided a brief update on work to date and the positions they
hope to hire soon. Highlights included:

e Jim McDonald has been on the ground in Lytton working with the
First Nations partners on site assessments, debris removal and
clean up efforts with Calder Graham of Emergency Management
BC (EMBC), and Tim McLeod, Re-entry Coordinator.

Village of Lytton Regular Council Meeting

Page 2 of 6

CARRIED

CARRIED

CARRIED

CARRIED

CARRIED



Page 3 of 6

e Alison Poste has been working on developing an organizational
and governance structure with recruitment and establishing an
Unmet Needs Committee as a priority.

7.2 Chief Financial Officer
7.3 Corporate Officer
7.4 Economic Development Officer
7.5 Public Works
7.6 Fire/Rescue
8 Bylaws, Policies and Resolutions

9 Correspondence
9.1 Incoming Correspondence for Action

9.2 Correspondence List
a) Incoming for Information
o October 29, 2021 Lytton and District Chamber of
Commerce comments on Recovery Plan

21-217 Moved by Councillor Hay, seconded by Councillor Leitch THAT the October
29, 2021 Lytton and District Chamber of Commerce comments on Recovery
Plan be recieved for information. CARRIED

b) Outgoing Relevant to Council

10 Reports from Mayor and Councillors
10.1 Mayor Polderman
Mayor Polderman acknowledged the passing of Vivian Roy and expressed
condolences to the Roy family, noting that she was a long-term resident of
Lytton.

Mayor Polderman reported that on behalf of Council he:

e Attended the Thompson Nicola Regional District (TNRD) Annual
General Meeting.

e Talked with Provincial officials regarding debris removal financing.

e Met with Tim McLeod who would like residents to contact him
regarding removing trees on private property for free — Tim’s
contact information is available on the Village website.

e Noted that the Interior Health Authority is hosting a flu clinic on
November 17, 2021 which is open to everyone - 250 455 2715

e Met with Gord Rattray, a representative of the BC Manufactured
Housing Association (BCMHA).

e Met with President Frida of the Aerated Concrete Association
(ACA) at Kumsheen.

Village of Lytton Regular Council Meeting



Page 4 of 6

e Announced that funding for uninsured debris clean-up is in place
and noted that Area | Director Steve Rice would like to meet with
the Village and the Lytton First Nation regarding fire protection in
the spring.

e Attended and spoke at the November 8, 2021 Public Information
Meeting.

10.2 Councillor Leitch
Councillor Leitch reported that on behalf of Council he:

e Attended and spoke at the November 8, 2021 Public Information
Meeting.

e Worked on responding to Citizen’s Advisory Committee applicants
and developing recommendations for committee size and
representation.

e Was in contact with the Fraser Valley Tourism committee.

10.3 Councillor Hay
Councillor Hay reported that on behalf of Council he:
e Attended the November 8, 2021 Public Information Meeting.

10.4 Councillor Graie
Councillor Graie reported that on behalf of Council she:
e Thank you to Matthew for Desolate Sound Holdings for doing
grant (ask her for thank yous) Brad Vis and Britney Lange for
getting extension.

11 Reports from Committees of Council and Commissions
11.1 Leadership and Policy for Recovery Select Committee
a) November 10, 2021 Meeting Report

Chair Leitch reported the following recommendations from the November
10, 2021 Leadership and Policy for Recovery Select Committee:

e The committee was provided with a list of the applicants for
membership on the Citizen Advisory Committee;

e A recommendation was presented for committee size and
representation.

21-041 LPR
Moved by Mayor Polderman, THAT the Select Committee recommend the
following individuals be appointed to the Advisory Planning Committee at
the November 10, 2021 Regular Council Meeting:

Residents — Michelle Swan, Melissa Michelle

Loring/Ponderosa — Dylan Taylor

Westside — Jessoa Lightfoot

First Nations — John Haugen (pending confirmation)

Small Business/Famer’s Market — Patsy Gessey

Non-Profit Organizations — Sheila Maguire

Volunteers — Noni McCann

Village of Lytton Regular Council Meeting



Page 5 of 6

Youth — Jade Baxter
Local Artist — Ollie Harrison
CARRIED

21-042 LPR

Moved by Mayor Polderman, THAT the Select Committee recommend that

Council adopt the terms of reference as presented at their meeting on

November 10, 2021, with a maximum of 10 committee members.
CARRIED

21-218 Moved by Councillor Hay, seconded by Councillor Graie, THAT Council
appoint the following individuals to the Advisory Planning Committee:
Residents — Michelle Swan, Melissa Michelle
Loring/Ponderosa — Dylan Taylor
Westside — Jessoa Lightfoot
First Nations — John Haugen (pending confirmation)
Small Business/Famer’s Market — Patsy Gessey
Non-Profit Organizations — Sheila Maguire
Volunteers — Noni McCann
Youth — Jade Baxter
Local Artist — Ollie Harrison CARRIED

21-219 Moved by Mayor Polderman, seconded by Councillor Hay, THAT Council
adopt the terms of reference as presented, with a maximum of 10
committee members. CARRIED

12 New Business
12.1 SAFERHomes Standards

Topic was referred to the Citizen’s Advisory Committee for input, along
with the gift card distribution process.

13  Calendar of Events/Outstanding Items List
a) November 22, 2021 Citizen’s Advisory Committee first meeting
b) November 24, 2021 Leadership and Policy for Recovery Select Committee
Meeting
c) November 24, 2021 Regular Council Meeting

14 Closed Meeting

21-220 Moved by Councillor Hay, seconded by Councillor Leitch, THAT Council
close the meeting to the public to discuss three matters related to
Community Charter Section 90(1)(g) legal, one matter related to
Community Charter Section 90(1)(a) personnel, and one matter related to
Community Charter Section 90(1)(e) land. CARRIED

Village of Lytton Regular Council Meeting



Page 6 of 6

15 Adjournment
15.1 Adjournment of the November 10, 2021 Regular Council Meeting

21-221 Moved by Councillor Leitch, THAT the November 10, 2021 Regular Council
Meeting be adjourned at 8:47 pm. CARRIED

Certified Correct

Mayor Polderman A/Corporate Officer Mattiussi

Village of Lytton Regular Council Meeting



The Corporation of the Village of Lytton

PO Box 100, 380 Main Street, Lytton, BC VOK 1Z0
P: 250-455-2355 F: 250-455-2142
hotspot@ytton.ca

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

(S.O.F.l)

For the Fiscal Year 2020



The Corporation of the Village of Lytton
PO Box 100, 380 Main Street, Lytton, BC VOK 1Z0
P: 250-455-2355 F: 250-455-2142
hotspot@Ilytton.ca

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ACT

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
For the Fiscal Year 2020

The undersigned, as authorized by the Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1,
subsection 9(2), approves all the statements and schedules included in the Statement of
Financial Information, produced under the Financial Information Act.

Terry Hawes, MBA, CPA, CGA, C.Dir. Jan Polderman,
Financial Officer Mayor

Date: Date:




The Corporation of the Village of Lytton

SCHEDULE OF SEVERANCES, GUARANTEES AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENTS

For the Fiscal Year 2020

1 Statement of Guarantee and Indemnity Agreements

The Village of Lytton has not given any guarantees or indemnities under the
Guarantees & Indemnities Regulation

Prepared under the Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, section 5(1)

2 Statement of Severance Agreements

There was one severance agreements made between the the Village of Lytton and its non-
unionized employees during fiscal year 2020.

This agreement represents three months of compensation.

Prepared under the Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, subsection 6(8)




The Corporation of the Village of Lytton

STATEMENT OF REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES PAID TO OR ON BEHALF OF EACH EMPLOYEE

For the Fiscal Year 2020

Elected Officials Remuneration Expenses Total
Mayor Jan Polderman 7,500.00 400.00 7,900.00
Tiffany Callewaert-Haugen 5,000.00 - 5,000.00
lan Hay 5,000.00 - 5,000.00
Gordon Murray 2,500.00 - 2,500.00
Total Elected Officials $ 20,000.00 $ 400.00 $ 20,400.00

Employees over $75,000

None $ - % -8 -
Employees under $75,000
Consolidated totals $ 581,166.00 $ 10,611.11 $ 591,777.11
Total employees

$ 601,166.00 $ 11,011.11  $ 612,177.11

Reconciliation

Total remuneration - Elected officials 20,000.00
Employee over $75,000 -
Other Employees Under $75,000 581,166.00
Total wages and benefits per Statement of

Revenue and Expenditure $ 601,166.00

Prepared under the Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, section 6(2), (3), (4), (5) and (6)




The Corporation of the Village of Lytton
Schedule of Payments to Suppliers of Goods or Services
(Excludes transfers to other taxing authorities and organizations)

For the Fiscal Year 2020

Aggregate Payments Exceeding $25,000

BC HYDRO

COM COM

GORMAC DEVELOPMENTS LTD

IRISH CREEK RESOURCE TRAINING AND CONTRACTING
KANAKA BAR EMPLOYMENT SERVICES LTD

LIDSTONE & COMPANY

MNP LLP

RECEIVER GENERAL FOR CANADA

THOMPSON NICOLA REGIONAL DISTRICT

URBAN SYSTEMS

Grand Total- Aggregate amount paid to supliers exceeding $25,000

Consolidated Total -Suppliers who received aggregate payments of $25,000 or less

Total Payments to Suppliers of Goods or Services

Total Expenses per Statement of Operations and Acuumulated Surplus

Reconciliation

Employee and Council wages and benefits

New Capital Additions

Amortization - non cash transaction

Principal on debt

Prepaid expenses

Account payable recorded in 2020 and paid in 2021
GST paid included in payments

Difference

2020

52,328.58
231,555.81
38,985.46
47,512.50
68,284.99
25,223.42
39,690.00
146,179.31
82,333.14

50,531.25

782,624.46

346,276.48

1,128,900.94

1,378,679.00

(601,166.00)
217,229.00
(175,167.00)

19,805.00
21,462.00
233,495.94
34,563.00

1,128,900.94

Prepared under the Financial Information Regulation, Schedule 1, section 7 and Financial Information Act, section 2




Village of

Lyf ’70'@ REPORT / RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL

SUBMITTED BY: Terry Hawes, CFO
REPORTING DATE: November 24, 2021
FILE #: N/A

SUBIJECT: 2021 Property Taxes
MEETING TYPE — OPEN

(ESTIMATED TIME: Minutes) 10

PURPOSE:

To update Mayor and Council as to Property Tax Notices for 2021.

BACKGROUND:

The 2021 British Columbia Assessment Authority (“BCAA”) issued its Notices of Assessments in
early January 2021 for the purposes of the 2021 tax roll. These property values are always one
year behind in that the BCAA does their work in July of the year prior to the taxation year that
the assessments apply to. Therefore, for 2021, the property valuations were compiled in July
2020.

The Village issued the 2021 Property Tax Notices in furtherance to the approved Tax Bylaw 704,
2021 (May 12, 2021). As at the date of the wildfire, some property owners had paid their
respective Notices, and others had not. Further, the Village office has received several cheques
from property owners, and these have not been deposited to the Village bank account. As the
data rebuild is still underway, | am unable to advise the amount of taxes collected and
outstanding at this time. MNP has rebuilt the Tax Notice procedure and thus are ready to
reissue the 2021 Tax Notices to property owners. This includes the amounts due to other
agencies (school, police, etc.). Once these Tax Notices are reissued and the data rebuild is
completed, we will be in a position to advise the amount of tax collected and the amount in
arrears. | estimate to have this data available by the end of December 2021.

The Village has a history of having an annual due date of July 31 for residential Property Tax
Notices and August 31 for commercial Property Tax Notices. This is contrary to the default
legislated due date of July 2 of each year for both categories of property. This alternative due
date is authorized and accomplished by way of adopting an Alternative Tax Collection Scheme
Bylaw as required by legislation.

Page 1 of 2




It has been identified that for 2020, the Village did not execute the application of late payment
penalties and interest relative to applicable property owners. The application of these penalties
(10.0%) and interest (5.95%) is a legislative requirement (Sections 245, 246 and 245 of the
Community Charter and Sections 655 and 660 of the Local Government Act). The recreation of
the 2021 Property Tax Notices will not capture this error, although the amounts are being
calculated and processed. The applicable property owners will be advised of the current
amounts owing, including 2020 penalties and interest in addition to any balance still
outstanding for 2021.

RELEVANT HISTORY:

Not applicable

ANALYSIS:

Due to the fire, many property owners will be factually late in paying their Tax Notices and filing
their Home Owner Grant (residential properties). The provincial government has advised us
that they are willing to authorize the Village to waive any penalty and interest on the late
payment and filing of the respective 2021 amount and application by authority of Section 781
of the Local Government Act. There is no authority available to the Village to waive, reduce or
otherwise abate the Property Tax Notice amounts due to the Village or other entities included
in the Tax Notice.

ALTERNATIVES:

No alternatives have been identified.

RECOMMENDATIONS / MOTIONS / RESOLUTION:

To receive this report and to communicate to property owners that the Property Tax Notices
will be reissued by the end of November 2021 and that payment is due upon receipt. Further,
all cheques received from property owners that are on hand will be deposited on November 30,
2021. Lastly, interest will continue to accrue on any unpaid 2020 balances until they are fully
paid.




URBAN MEMORANDUM

SYSTEMS

DATE: November 10,2021
TO: Lori Wiedeman, Village of Lytton, CAO Advisor
FROM: Peter Coxon, P.Eng., Adrianna Johnson, BSc
FILE: 0694.0020.01
SUBJECT: Village of Lytton Water Quality

A water quality sample was taken from Lytton Creek on October 5, 2021 by Village staff. The Creek sample
represents the raw water quality prior to treatment. Water quality samples were collected by Village staff from
two taps in the Village of Lytton on October 7, 2021. It is our understanding that the Ponderosa sample was taken
from a tap at the residence of lan Hayes, and that the Forestry sample was taken from a tap at the forestry
building. The water quality data for the Creek, Ponderosa and Forestry samples are summarized in Table 1 below.
The table includes a comparison to guidelines for Canadian Drinking Water Quality' and British Columbia
Drinking Water Quality Guidelines?. Both guidelines consider:

e Aesthetic objectives (AQ); which play a role in determining whether consumers will consider the water
drinkable,

e Maximum acceptable concentrations (MAC); which are based on health effects, and

e Operational guidance (OG); which indicate whether a parameter may interfere or impair treatment
processes.

The drinking water quality guideline values in Table 1 encompass both Federal and Provincial guidelines and
indicate the most stringent guideline available. For data above guidelines, the data are highlighted in Table 1.

For the Creek sample, the total coliforms and E. coli concentrations were above the MAC. Given that this sample
represents raw water quality prior to UV and chlorine treatment, the levels of total coliforms and E. coli are
expected. Furthermore, the concentrations of total iron and total manganese in the Creek sample were above
the corresponding AQO. For the Creek sample, the concentrations of total aluminum, total arsenic, total barium,
total calcium, total chromium, total lead, total magnesium, and total potassium were higher than the Ponderosa
and Forestry samples.

The comparison of the data for the Ponderosa and Forestry samples to drinking water quality guidelines indicates
that for the parameters tested, all corresponding drinking water quality guidelines were met. The data for
Ponderosa and Forestry samples indicate a reduction in the total coliforms and E. coli concentrations from the
levels measured in the Creek sample to levels below detection. The concentrations of total iron and total
manganese were also reduced to levels below the AO for the Ponderosa and Forestry samples, in comparison to
the Creek sample. For the Forestry sample, the concentrations of total copper, total lead, and total zinc were
below corresponding water quality guidelines, but the concentrations were significantly higher than the those
measured for the Ponderosa sample.

" Health Canada (2020). Guidelines for Drinking Water Quality — Summary Table. Water and Air Quality Bureau, Healthy
Environments and Consumer Safety Branch, Health Canada, Ottawa, Ontario.

2 British Columbia Ministry of Environment and Climate Change Strategy (2020). BC Source Drinking Water Quality
Guidelines: Guideline Summary. Water Quality Guideline Series, WQG-01. Prov. BC, Victoria BC.

200 - 286 St. Paul Street, Kamloops, BC V2C 6G4 | T: 250.374.8311 urbansystems.ca



URBAN SYSTEMS MEMORANDUM

DATE: November 10,2021 FILE: 0694.0020.01
SUBJECT: Village of Lytton Water Quality

Table 1. Creek/Ponderosa/Forestry Water Quality Summary with Comparison to Applicable Drinking Water

Quality Guidelines

20of 4

Drinking Water Quality Guidelines
Parameter Creek Ponderosa Forestry
AO MAC oG
Conductivity
1o 123 124 - - -
(uS/cm)
Total Alkalinity
(as CaCO3) 51.7 595 64.9 - - -
(mg/L)
True Colour (CU) 7.6 <5.0 <5.0 15 - -
Hardness (as
106 497 49.4 - - -
CaCO3) (mg/L)
pH 7.81 7.87 7.84 7.0-10.5 - -
Total Dissolved
. 83 89 84 500 - -
Solids (mg/L)
Turbidity (NTU) 0.19 <0.10 <0.10 - - 1
Chloride (mg/L) 0.91 4.07 455 250 - -
Fluoride (mg/L) 0.035 0.032 0.031 - 1.5 -
Nitrate (mg/L) <0.0050 <0.0050 <0.0050 - 10 -
Nitrite (mg/L) <0.0010 <0.0010 <0.0010 - 1 -
Sulphate (mg/L) 536 572 5.69 500 - -
Total Colif Non-
otal Coliforms 548 < < i on i
(MPN/100 mL) detectable
E. coli (MPN/100 Non-
3 <] <] - -
mL) detectable
Total
Aluminium 0.497 0.0120 0.0100 - 95 -
(mg/L)
Total Antimony
<0.00050 <0.00050 <0.00050 - 0.006 -
(mg/L)
Total A i
otatArsenic 0.00118 0.00022 0.00020 . 0.010 .
(mg/L)
Total Bari
oralBanum 0.0483 <0.0200 <0.0200 - 20 .
(mg/L)

200 - 286 St. Paul Street, Kamloops, BC V2C 6G4 | T:250.374.8311

urbansystems.ca




URBAN SYSTEMS MEMORANDUM

DATE: November 10,2021 FILE: 0694.0020.01 PAGE: 3of 4
SUBJECT: Village of Lytton Water Quality

Table 1. Creek/Ponderosa/Forestry Water Quality Summary with Comparison to Applicable Drinking Water
Quality Guidelines (continued...)

Drinking Water Quality Guidelines
Parameter Creek Ponderosa Forestry
AO MAC (o]
Total Boron
<0.100 <0.100 <0.100 - 50 -
(mg/L)
Total Cadmium
<0.000200 <0.000200 <0.000200 - 0.005 -
(mg/L)
Total Calcium 2656 17.3 17.2 ; ; ;
(mg/L)
Total
Chromium 0.00241 <0.00200 <0.00200 - 0.05 -
(mg/L)
Total Copper
0.0452 0.00252 0.443 1 2 -
(mg/L)
Total Iron
2.80 <0.030 <0.030 0.3 - -
(mg/L)
Total Lead
otalLea 0.00417 <0.000500 0.00256 ; 0.005 ;
(mg/L)
Total
Magnesium 9.70 1.59 1.56 - - -
(mg/L)
Total
Manganese 0.083] <0.00200 <0.00200 0.02 0.12 -
(mg/L)
Total Mercury
<0.0000050 <0.0000050 <0.0000050 - 0.001 -
(mg/L)
Total
Potassium 1.44 0.307 0.289 - - -
(mg/L)
Total Seleni
otalSelenium | 4 50100 <0.00100 <0.00100 ; 0.01 ,
(mg/L)
Total Sodium
4.26 4.69 4.56 200 - -
(mg/L)

200 - 286 St. Paul Street, Kamloops, BC V2C 6G4 | T:250.374.8311

urbansystems.ca




URBAN SYSTEMS MEMORANDUM

DATE: November 10,2021 FILE: 0694.0020.01 PAGE: 4of 4
SUBJECT: Village of Lytton Water Quality

Table 1. Creek/Ponderosa/Forestry Water Quality Summary with Comparison to Applicable Drinking Water
Quality Guidelines (continued...)

Drinking Water Quality Guidelines
Parameter Creek Ponderosa Forestry
AO MAC oG
Total Uranium
0.000162 0.000417 0.000413 - 0.02 -
(mg/L)
Total Zinc
0.0825 <0.0500 0.131 5 3 -
(mg/L)

It is important to consider that the results and guideline comparison presented above represent single samples
taken from three sampling locations. The water quality of the Village drinking water is subject to change, and
therefore, further sampling is recommended to confirm that the water is safe to drink.

Please do not hesitate to contact us if there are any questions or concerns regarding the water quality data.

Sincerely,

URBAN SYSTEMS LTD.

/” m

/

' / /
2L g 10
yr = A;q‘b/’* WL
-—
Peter Coxon, P. Eng. Adrianna Johnson, BSc.
Senior Project Leader/Principal Environmental Consultant
/aj

\\usl.urban-systems.com\projects\Projects_KAM\0694\0020\01\E-Enviromental\Water Wastewater\Water\2021-11-08 MEM Ponderosa Forestry Summary Report.docx

200 - 286 St. Paul Street, Kamloops, BC V2C 6G4 | T:250.374.8311 urbansystems.ca



Lytton - Oct Water Quality Sampling - Ponderosa/Forestry distribution system

Peter Coxon <PCOXON@urbansystems.ca>
Thu 2021-11-11 9:27 AM

To: Lori Wiedeman <loriwiedeman®@live.ca>

Cc: Alison Poste <alisonposte@gmail.com>; Jim Macdonald <jémacdonald@shaw.ca>; Ron Gmail
<rmattiussi@gmail.com>; Lindsay Tithecott <Itithecott@urbansystems.ca>; Tesic-Nagalingam, Diana <Diana.Tesic-
Nagalingam@®@interiorhealth.ca>; Rick Collins <RCOLLINS@urbansystems.ca>

) 1 attachments (235 KB)
2021-11-08 MEM Ponderosa Forestry Summary Report.pdf;

Hi Lori,

Attached is our summary memorandum, showing the results of the water quality sampling from our
October tests in Ponderosa and Forestry portions of the distribution system. The results indicate
that, based upon the drinking water quality guidelines for the parameters tested, all corresponding

drinking water quality guidelines were met. While this was expected, it is still good news.

We have recently undertaken a second set of samples and we will use the results of these samples,
to confirm the results we obtained in the memorandum attached.

Next Steps:
1/ complete the UDF (unidirectional flushing program ) currently underway — hopefully next week.

2/ Meet with IHA to confirm the parameters that they would like us to test, upon completion of the
UDF program.

3/ Undertake a sampling program, in the locations as per the previous sampling.

4/ Assuming the results indicate that the drinking water quality guidelines were met, IHA will then be
in a position to lift the DNC Order ( Do Not Consume).

| have taken the liberty of copying Diana with IHA on this memorandum, as she does need to see
these results, as part of the process of lifting the DNC Order.

Please let me know if you have any questions/comments.
Thanks
Peter Coxon, P.Eng. Senior Project Leader/Principal

Im 200 - 286 St. Paul Street | Kamloops, BC V2C 6G4
t 250-374-8311 x7258 | € 250-319-1579

SYSTEMS w urbansystems.ca



http://www.urbansystems.ca/

Named as one of Canada’s Best Workplaces - 15 years running


https://www.facebook.com/spirit.of.urban/
https://twitter.com/spirit_of_urban
https://www.instagram.com/urbansystems/
https://www.linkedin.com/company/86634/admin/
https://vimeo.com/urbansystems
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCv9qqieaIb0nAzKHpFaDWNw

1095 Todd Road | PO Box 933| Cache Creek, BC | VOK 1HO

goldcountry@telus.net | www.exploregoldcountry.com | Toll Free 1.877.453.9467 | Tel 250-457-6606

Mayor Polderman and Council November 16, 2021
Lytton, BC

Mayor Polderman and Council
Gold Country Shop Local BC Grant letter of support request.

Gold Country Communities Society is making application to the Shop Local BC Grant. The grant is funded by the
Government of Canada. The shop Local initiative provides grants for programs and campaigns that encourage Canadians
to shop local, helping businesses navigate through and beyond the pandemic.

If granted the funding, Gold Country would undertake the task of creating a series of Shop Local BC Campaign videos
highlighting businesses in each of the Gold Country Communities. Each video would be approximately 3 minutes in
length showcasing local businesses stating that they are “Open for Business” encouraging the Shop Local motto. Gold
Country would also create a Community Collective Website; a collaborative site showcasing Gold Country businesses
and artisans, allowing artisans and businesses to have profiles with links to their collections. This site would be
organized additionally by communities, giving further exposure to the region of Gold Country. With a shopping cart,
order management capabilities, and payment processing options, this website would have added functionality allowing
for automatic orders, product catalogue pages, search function, and would also host Gold Country’s own merchandise.
This undertaking would create employment and shop local opportunities for those in our region.

Gold Country Communities Society works hard to secure the economic diversification of our region by making
application to programs and grants such as the Shop Local BC initiative, using the funding to make creative content
campaigns designed to showcase our merchants, artisans, cultures, and region. This funding would be an extra help
regionally in the recovery of our area after the terrible wildfires and impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic. We are kindly
asking our communities and stakeholders to support Gold Country in its application to the Shop Local BC Grant by
sending us a letter of support for this application. Letters are needed as soon as possible, but no later than November
25%™, 2021. Thank you, and if you have any questions at all please contact the office.

Marcie Down,
KD
7,880 % 8

Executive Director
Gold Country Communities Society

Ashcroft| Blue Sky Country | Bonaparte Plateau Cache Creek | Clinton
Copper Desert Country | Lillooet | Logan Lake | Lytton

GOLD COUNTRY - BC

— explore with us —

A


mailto:goldcountry@telus.net
http://www.exploregoldcountry.com/

Village of

Ly/%m

2020 ANNUAL MUNICIPAL REPORT



TABLE OF CONTENTS

T« o F = 3
Message from the IMayor ...ttt renserens e ssensssssnssessansssnens 4
(601U T | ISR IS 5
Declaration and Identification of Disqualified Council Members.......................... 5
Contracts with Council Members and Former Council Members ..........cccccee....e. 5
(0o TU T ol I a¥=T0 g 10T 0 1T - | 1] o HA S 5
Objectives and Progress REPOITS.....ccccceeeererrncrerrncrecrecrenrecrecreeresensensancenes 7
2020 Goals and Progress REPOIt .....cceeeiieeeiieiiiiiceeee e e e e e e e e eaa s 7
Statement of Municipal Objectives and Progress Measures 2020/2021 .............. 8
JAYe [0 0 VTR TS 4 - 1 Lo o OO 9
COrPOIate SEIVICES . ittt e e e e e e et e e e e e eaaaaa s 9
0T o T oA o 9
PrOtECTIVE SEIVICES ..ttt et e e e e et e e e e eaas 9
ECONOMIC DEVEIOPMENT ...uuiiiie e e e e 10
T =] o Tol PPNt 10
2020 Permissive Tax EXEMPLiONS ....ccceereireieirerrerenreceerenrecerecrecensecnncennees 11
Audited Financial Statements .....c.cccceiieiiiieiiiiiicicicicicreerecreeeeeenenns 12

Village of Lytton — 2020 Annual Municipal Report Page 2 of 12



PURPOSE

The British Columbia Community Charter requires of municipalities that:
98 (1) Before June 30 in each year, a council must

(a) prepare an annual report,

(b) make the report available for public inspection under section 97, and

(c) have the report available for public inspection at the meeting required
under section 99.

(2) The annual report must include the following:

(a) the audited annual financial statements referred to in section 167 (4) for
the previous year;

(b) for each tax exemption provided by a council under Division 7 [Permissive
Tax Exemptions] of Part 7 [Municipal Revenue], the amount of property
taxes that would have been imposed on the property in the previous year
if it were not exempt for that year;

(c) a report respecting municipal services and operations for the previous
year;

(d) a progress report respecting the previous year in relation to the objectives
and measures established for that year under paragraph (f);

(e) any declarations of disqualification made under section 111 [application
to court for declaration of disqualification] in the previous year, including
identification of the council member or former council member involved
and the nature of the disqualification;

(f) a statement of municipal objectives, and the measures that will be used to
determine progress respecting those objectives, for the current and next
year;

(g) any other information the council considers advisable.

Village of Lytton — 2020 Annual Municipal Report Page 3 of 12



MESSAGE FROM THE MAYOR

Welcome to the Village of Lytton!

Lytton is located at the junction of the Thompson and Fraser Rivers. Lytton is one of the
longest continuously inhabited areas in North America with a number of Indigenous
bands in the area. The weather can be very hot in the summer but the winters are
generally warmer than the rest of BC’s interior. This results in a relatively mosquito free
environment.

Set in a beautiful location, the community is an affordable place to live, with
reasonable access to larger centres.

The village has a visitor center to inform visitors of the local attractions. The village also
has two museums, restaurants, river rafting, and overnight accommodations. Internet
service is good, and attractions include our Farmers market, River festival and Two
Rivers Remix Festival.

The Council and staff are pleased to present the annual report and audited financial
statements for the year 2020. This report is important to staff and Council in
monitoring the fiscal situation and evolution of the village.

During the year we started a six-part water infrastructure upgrade totalling one and a
half million dollars. The Council will work on improving the planning of the direction
forward. We welcome your input. We will continue to work with community partners

to improve the quality of life in Lytton.

On behalf of the Lytton Council, staff and residents we welcome you to the Village of
Lytton.

Mayor Jan Polderman

Village of Lytton — 2020 Annual Municipal Report Page 4 of 12



COUNCIL

Council is the governing body for the municipality. Often known as the “policy group”,
they are responsible for setting the priorities and overall direction for the Village by
establishing policies and bylaws, approving services and approving the financial and
human resources to accomplish those.

Declaration and Identification of Disqualified Council Members
No declarations of disqualification have been made in the Village of Lytton in the
previous year.

Contracts with Council Members and former Council Members
No contracts were entered into with current and former Council members.

Council Remuneration

The BC Community Charter requires that:

168 (1) At least once a year, a council must have prepared a report separately listing
the following for each council member by name:

(a) the total amount of remuneration paid to the council member for
discharge of the duties of office, including any amount specified as an
expense allowance;

(b) the total amount of expense payments for the council member made to
the council member as reimbursement for expenses incurred by the
council member or as an allowance that is not reported under paragraph
(a);

(c) the total amount of any benefits, including insurance policies and policies
for medical or dental services, provided to the council member or the
member's dependants;

(d) any contracts reported under section 107 [disclosure of contracts with
council members and former council members], including a general
description of their nature.

(2) If applicable, the report under this section must also list contracts referred to in
subsection (1) (d) for each former council member.

Village of Lytton — 2020 Annual Municipal Report Page 5 of 12



2020 Council Remuneration

Name Remuneration Amount
Mayor Jan Polderman 2020 Stipend $7,500
Expenses $400
Councillor Jason Phillips 2020 Stipend $1,500
Expenses S25
Councillor Tiffany Callewaert-Haugen 2020 Stipend $5,000
Councillor lan Hay 2020 Stipend $5,000
Councillor Gordon Murray 2020 Stipend $2,500
UBCM Conference S350

Village of Lytton — 2020 Annual Municipal Report Page 6 of 12




OBIJECTIVES AND PROGRESS REPORTS

2020 Goals and Progress Report

Although the goals for 2020 were created with the best of intentions, the spread of
COVID-19 quickly changed everything. With new and different requirements of staff,
disruption in supply chains, and reduced contractor availability, the pandemic placed
severe restrictions on the ability to achieve the goals set for 2020.

Objectives Status
Develop a Sewer Master Plan In progress.
Negotiate a new Collective Agreement Complete

Implement the recommendations of the

Water Master Plan

This remains a priority of Council, pending the availability
of funds to enable the Village to proceed.

Continue to work on the Groundwater

Development Project

The project has been delayed by some implementation
challenges, and then by COVID-19, but is complete
pending the resolution of the last few project
deficiencies.

Community 2 Community Forums

As part of a series of C2C forums to further develop
relationships and to partner on the Groundwater
Development Project, the last forum was held in
February, 2020.

Website Redesign and Economic
Development Working Group

The website redesign is almost complete, with a new
host site for the website.

Economic Development Officer

Not started yet.

Fraser Canyon Tourism Master Plan

In progress.

Operational Fuel Treatment

This project is well underway, with a number of polygons
treated.

Fire Smart

This ongoing function was more challenging to
accomplish due to COVID-19. Community education
events were curtailed or redesigned. A Community Clean
Up Event was held in November, 2020.

Budget Software and GL Fix

This project is nearing completion, with some data
repairs to complete prior to finalization.

New Fire Truck

The new Fire Truck has been ordered, the chassis has
arrived and the build has begun.

Emergency Support Services
Modernization Upgrades

The purchase of the equipment for the ESS
Modernization has been made.

Pool resurfacing

The Village has so far been unable to have a contractor
guote on the sandblasting of the pool surface.

Water System Improvement Project

This multi-phase project is in progress, with the SCADA
system component almost complete.

Village of Lytton — 2020 Annual Municipal Report

Page 7 of 12




Statement of Municipal Objectives and Progress Measures for Current Year (2020)

and Next Year (2021)

Again, the goals for 2021 were created with the best of intentions. However, the
devastating wildfire of June 29, 2021, which burnt down 90% of the community,
combined with the ongoing effects of the COVID-19 global pandemic, will result in a
shift in the goals set for 2021 to recovery and rebuilding.

Objectives

Status

Develop a Sewer Master Plan

This Plan will form the basis of our rebuilding efforts.

Implement the recommendations of the
Water Master Plan

This Plan will form the basis of our rebuilding efforts.

Continue to work on the Groundwater
Development Project

The project has been delayed by some implementation
challenges, and then by COVID-19, but is complete
pending the resolution of the last few project
deficiencies.

Community 2 Community Forums

As part of a series of C2C forums to further develop
relationships and to partner on the Groundwater
Development Project, the last forum was held in
February, 2020.

Economic Development Officer

Not started yet.

Fraser Canyon Tourism Master Plan

In progress.

Operational Fuel Treatment

This project is well underway, with a number of polygons
treated.

Fire Smart

This ongoing function was more challenging to
accomplish due to COVID-19. Community education
events were curtailed or redesigned. A Community Clean
Up Event was held in November, 2020.

Pool resurfacing

The Village has so far been unable to have a contractor
qguote on the sandblasting of the pool surface.

Water System Improvement Project

This multi-phase project is in progress, with the SCADA
system component almost complete.

Village of Lytton — 2020 Annual Municipal Report Page 8 of 12




ADMINISTRATION

Administration is the staff side of the organization, as differentiated from Council,
which is the governance side. The staff functions very broadly include Corporate
Services, Public Works, Protective Services, Economic Development and Finance.

Corporate Services

This department includes the functions of Chief Administrative Officer, Corporate
Officer (which includes agendas and minutes, records management, FOI requests,
elections) and Human Resources.

Of all resources that corporations manage, human resources are the most vital to any
operation. This year the Village of Lytton saw turnover in the Chief Financial Officer,
Administration Clerk and Finance Clerk positions.

Public Works

Public Works is responsible for the reliable delivery of many of the Village services that
citizens use. Services such as water, sewer, road and street maintenance, park
maintenance, fire hydrant maintenance, the cemetery, the pool, building maintenance,
vehicle maintenance and often, project management or project work fall into this
department.

Protective Services
Protective Services includes Lytton Fire Rescue, Bylaw Services, Building Inspection,
Emergency Social Services (ESS) and Emergency Preparedness.

Lytton Fire Rescue is a fully volunteer Fire Department, providing ambulance assist,
road rescue and fire suppression services.

Building Inspection Services are contracted through the Thompson Nicola Regional
District.

While the Village has bylaws that people in the community are expected to comply
with, the Village does not have a Bylaw Officer dedicated to the education,

investigation and enforcement of the bylaws.

ESS services are provided by a dedicated team of volunteers who assist people
displaced from their homes in times of emergency.

Village of Lytton — 2020 Annual Municipal Report Page 9 of 12



Emergency Preparedness includes the establishment and maintenance of an
Emergency Plan, emergency response training, the equipment and maintenance of an
Emergency Operations Centre, development of emergency communications means,
emergency mitigation actions and public education.

Economic Development

Under the Economic Development function, the Village provides a museum governed
by a Commission established by the Council, and a Visitor Information Centre, managed
by the Lytton Chamber of Commerce.

Finance

All local governments in BC operate within a legislative framework that governs their
administration and finances including revenues, liabilities, financial planning, reporting,
capital financing, development financing, insurance, and property acquisition and
disposition. The Finance Department provides the functions of budgeting, tax
collection, accounts payable, accounts receivable, insurance management, payroll and
asset management.

Village of Lytton — 2020 Annual Municipal Report Page 10 of 12



2019 PERMISSIVE TAX EXEMPTIONS

Under Section 227 of the Community Charter the Village of Lytton Council bylaw
provides exemption of the total assessed value of the land and improvements of
designated properties. Council approved the Permissive Tax Exemption Bylaw on
October 24, 2016 for five years for the following properties:

Properties Approved for Permissive Tax Exemptions

The Lytton Elementary School, which includes the Nzenman Daycare and Childcare
Programs on its site, and the surrounding land; civic address 270 — 7th Street, Lytton,
BC; and being legally described as Lot 1, Plan KAP65003, Section 1, Township 15, Range
27, Kamloops Division of Yale Land District; PID #024-568-902;

The Pioneer Cemetery located on lands owned by CN Rail Company; civic address Trans
Canada Highway, Lytton, BC; and being legally described as Lot 2, Plan KAP73627,
Section 1, Township 15, Range 27, Meridian W6, Kamloops Division of Yale Land
District; PID #025-677-969;

The Lytton Cemetery; civic address Trans Canada Highway, Lytton, BC; and being legally
described as District Lot 4041, Kamloops Division of Yale Land District, PID #013-222-
422;

Kumsheen Secondary School, and the surrounding land; civic address 365 Trans Canada
Highway, Lytton, BC; and being legally described as District Lot 5809, Kamloops Division
of Yale Land District, Except Plan H9746; PID #013-255-568;

Village of Lytton — 2020 Annual Municipal Report Page 11 of 12




AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Village of Lytton — 2020 Annual Municipal Report Page 12 of 12



Village of

Ly7ion

Unmet Needs Committee
Terms of Reference

2021-11-24

Authority:
The Unmet Needs Committee will act as an advisory body to the Council for the Village of Lytton in

regard to issues of needs highlighted during the rebuild of the Village of Lytton.

Community Charter Section 142-Select Committees
1. A council may establish and appoint a select committee to consider or inquire into any matter
and to report its findings and opinion to Council.
2. Atleast one member of a select committee must be a council member.
3. Subject to subsection (2), person(s) who are not council members may be appointed to a select
committee.

Purpose:

The purpose of the Unmet Needs Committee is to:

To advise and make recommendations to the Council on issues pertaining to unmet needs during the
rebuild and recovery of the Village of Lytton.

Composition (Stakeholders):
® One Council Member
e Lytton Recovery Manager (staff lead)
® Representative from Lytton’s Business Community
e Village of Lytton Community Members (2-4)
e Representative from Lytton First Nation
Responsibilities:
® Advise on how donations should be managed and distributed.
e Oversee volunteers and their deployment.
e |dentify and coordinate partnerships with governmental agencies to provide services to Lytton;
and
e |dentify and coordinate partnerships with non-governmental agencies to provide services to
Lytton.

Appointment and Duration:
e Committee Members will be appointed by resolution of Council with the exception of the
external stakeholders who will appoint a member to represent their organization.
e Committee members shall be appointed annually
e A committee member may serve a maximum of two one-year terms



Reporting:
e The committee reports back to Mayor and Council through the Council representative on the

Committee; and
o Adesignated committee representative may appear as a delegation before Council where

relevant.

Meetings:
e The committee shall meet monthly.
e The Chair and Recovery Manager may cancel, or schedule additional meetings as required.

Protocol and Procedures
1. Meeting Agendas and Minutes
¢ All meetings must have an agenda.
e Each member of the Committee must be in receipt of an agenda prior to the meeting.
e Meetings are to be kept to a maximum of one and one-half hours (1.5).
2. Consensus Decision-making
e The Unmet Needs Committee members will not vote on any issues.
e When a decision or direction is required, it is to be achieved through consensus.
3. Conduct
e The Unmet Needs Committee shall conduct themselves in a respectful manner in all of their
dealings with each other and the Council as a whole.
o Members must abstain from discussion and voting on a matter where they have a real
or perceived conflict of interest.

Governance:
o The Committee will appoint a Chair at the initial meeting.
e The committee meetings will follow Roberts Rules of Order.
e The committee meetings are open to the public.



	2021 11 24 Regular Council Meeting Agenda
	5.1 2021 11 10 Regular Council Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	7.2.1 2021 11 24 SOFI Report
	7.2.c 2021 11 24 Property Tax Report 2021
	7.5.a 2021 11 24 Water Recovery Update Report
	7.5.a 2021 11 11 P Coxon Email re Water Recovery
	9.1.a 2021 11 16 Shop Local BC Grant LOS Request
	12.1 Annual Report 2021



